EXTREME NETWORKS INC Form DEF 14A November 12, 2010 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant x

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- " Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- x No fee required.
- " Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.
 - 1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 - 2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
 - 3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
 - 4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
 - 5) Total fee paid:
- " Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
- " Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
 - 1) Amount Previously Paid:
 - 2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
 - 3) Filing Party:
 - 4) Date Filed:

Extreme Networks, Inc.

3585 Monroe Street

Santa Clara, California 95051

(408) 579-2800

November 12, 2010

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend our 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Wednesday, December 15, 2010 at 2:00 p.m. Pacific Time at the Executive Briefing Center at our headquarters located at 3585 Monroe Street, Santa Clara, California 95051.

At this meeting, you are being requested to:

Elect two Class III members of the Board of Directors for a three-year term,

Approve the amendment and restatement of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended to date, in order to declassify our Board of Directors,

Ratify the appointment of our independent auditors for our fiscal year ending June 26, 2011, and

Transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote in favor of these proposals. Please refer to the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement for further information on each of these proposals.

It is important that you use this opportunity to take part in the affairs of Extreme Networks by voting on the business to come before this meeting. After reading the Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, please promptly mark, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card in the prepaid envelope to ensure that your shares are represented. We also provide our stockholders the opportunity to receive stockholder communications electronically. If you elected for electronic delivery of the Proxy Statement

Table of Contents

and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, you will not be receiving a proxy card and must vote electronically. For more information, see *Electronic Delivery of Stockholder Communications* in the Proxy Statement.

If you have any further questions concerning the annual meeting or either of the proposals, please contact our proxy solicitor, MacKenzie Partners, Inc., toll free at (212) 929-5500 or our investor relations department at (408) 579-3030. We look forward to your attendance at the annual meeting.

Yours Very Truly,

Oscar Rodriguez

President and Chief Executive Officer

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

December 15, 2010

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS:

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Extreme Networks, Inc., a Delaware corporation, will be held on Wednesday, December 15, 2010 at 2:00 p.m. Pacific Time at the Executive Briefing Center at our headquarters located at 3585 Monroe Street, Santa Clara, California 95051, in order to:

- 1. Elect two Class III directors to hold office for a three-year term and until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal,
- 2. Approve the amendment and restatement of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended to date, in order to declassify our Board of Directors,
- 3. Ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending June 26, 2011, and
- 4. Transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Stockholders of record at the close of business on October 20, 2010 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, this meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof. For ten days prior to the meeting, a complete list of stockholders entitled to attend and vote at the meeting will be available for review by any stockholder during normal business hours at our headquarters located at 3585 Monroe Street, Santa Clara, California 95051.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

Diane C. Honda

Vice President,

General Counsel and Secretary

Santa Clara, California

November 12, 2010

IMPORTANT: To assure your representation at the meeting, please complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed envelope or follow the instructions on the enclosed proxy card to vote by telephone or via the Internet. If you attend the meeting, you may choose to vote in person even if you have previously sent in your proxy card.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TO THE PROXY STATEMENT

INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING	1
General	1
Who May Vote	1
Voting Your Proxy	1
Votes Needed to Hold the Meeting	2
Matters to Be Voted On at the Meeting	2
Cost of This Proxy Solicitation	3
Attending the Meeting	3
Changing Your Vote	3
Our Voting Recommendations	3
Voting Results	3
Electronic Delivery of Stockholder Communications How To Obtain A Separate Set of Voting Materials	4
How To Obtain A Separate Set of Voting Materials	4
PROPOSAL ONE: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	5
Vote Required and Board of Directors Recommendation	5
BOARD OF DIRECTORS	6
Class I Directors Serving a Term Expiring at the 2011 Annual Meeting	6
Class II Directors Serving a Term Expiring at the 2012 Annual Meeting	7
Class III Directors Serving a Term Expiring at the 2010 Annual Meeting	8
Arrangements Regarding Appointment of Directors	8
	0
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	9
Board Leadership Structure	10
Board s Role in Risk Oversight	10
Meetings of the Board of Directors	11
Executive Sessions	11
Committees of the Board of Directors	11 12
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation Director Nominations	12
Communications with Directors	12
Director Attendance at Annual Meetings	14
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	14
Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance Materials	15
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	15
PROPOSAL TWO: APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT OF OUR RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF	
INCORPORATION, AS AMENDED TO DATE, IN ORDER TO DECLASSIFY OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS	18
Background	18
Summary of Proposed Amendments to the Certificate of Incorporation	18
Vote Required and Board of Directors Recommendation	19
PROPOSAL THREE: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING	20
<u>JUNE 26, 2011</u>	20
<u>Principal Accounting Fees and Services</u> Vote Required and Board of Directors Recommendation	21
vote Required and Board of Directors Recommendation	21
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	22
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER MATTERS	24
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	24

i

Summary Compensation Table	32
Summary of Employment and Other Agreements	32
Grants of Plan-Based Awards	37
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	38
Option Exercises and Stock Vested During Last Fiscal Year	39
Pension Benefits and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plans	39
Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control	39
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	41
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS	41
Actual or Potential Conflicts of Interest	41
Reporting, Review and Approval of Related Party Transactions	41
SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	43
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION	43
REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE	44
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE	45
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS TO BE PRESENTED AT NEXT ANNUAL MEETING	47
TRANSACTION OF OTHER BUSINESS	47
COMMUNICATING WITH EXTREME NETWORKS	48
Appendix A	A-1

ii

EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT

INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

General

Our Board of Directors, or our Board, is requesting that you permit your common stock to be represented at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Extreme Networks, to be held on Wednesday, December 15, 2010, which we refer to as the 2010 Annual Meeting, or at any postponement or adjournment thereof, by the proxies named on the enclosed proxy card for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. This Proxy Statement contains important information for you to consider when deciding how to vote on the matters brought before the 2010 Annual Meeting. Please read it carefully. Voting materials, which include this Proxy Statement, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, or our 2010 Annual Report, and the accompanying proxy card, are first being mailed on or about November 12, 2010 to all stockholders who have registered for electronic delivery.

In this Proxy Statement, Extreme Networks may also be referred to as we, our, or us.

Who May Vote

You may vote your shares of Extreme Networks common stock if our records show that you owned your shares on October 20, 2010. At the close of business on that date, 90,879,737 shares of Extreme Networks common stock were outstanding and eligible to vote. You are entitled to one vote for each share you hold.

Voting Your Proxy

All valid proxies received before the 2010 Annual Meeting will be exercised. All shares represented by a proxy will be voted, and where a proxy specifies a stockholder s choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, the shares will be voted in accordance with that specification. If no choice is indicated on the proxy, the shares will be voted in favor of the proposal.

To assure that your vote is recorded promptly, please vote as soon as possible, even if you plan to attend the 2010 Annual Meeting in person. Instructions for voting by telephone, by using the Internet or by mail are on your proxy card. When you vote via the Internet or by phone, your vote is recorded immediately. We encourage our stockholders to vote using these methods whenever possible. If you attend the 2010 Annual Meeting, you may also submit your vote in person, and any previous votes that you submitted, whether by Internet, phone or mail, will be superseded by the vote that you cast at the 2010 Annual Meeting. A stockholder who has given a proxy may revoke it at any time before it is exercised by (i) filing with the Investor Relations department of Extreme Networks or MacKenzie Partners, Inc. a written revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date, or (ii) by voting in person at the 2010 Annual Meeting.

For those stockholders who are voting by Internet and received notification by mail, follow these steps:

- 1. Log on to *http://www.proxyvote.com*. To access an electronic ballot, enter the twelve-digit number contained in the proxy card or voting instruction form accompanying this Proxy Statement.
- 2. Complete the electronic ballot and submit your voting instructions.

3. Provide your email address if you want confirmation of your voting instructions.

Or, for those stockholders who are voting by Internet and received notification by email, follow these steps:

- 1. Log on to *http://www.proxyvote.com*. To access an electronic ballot, enter the twelve-digit number contained in your email message and the personal identification number (PIN) you used when you enrolled for electronic delivery.
- 2. The ballot displayed contains Internet links to the applicable materials; read them carefully.
- 3. Complete the electronic ballot and submit your voting instructions.

For those stockholders who are voting by telephone, follow these steps:

- 1. Dial 1-800-690-6903 using a touch-tone telephone.
- 2. You will be prompted to enter the twelve-digit number contained in the proxy card or voting instruction form accompanying this Proxy Statement.
- 3. Follow the instructions the vote voice provides you to submit your voting instructions.

Whether you hold shares in your name or through a broker, bank or other nominee, you may vote without attending the 2010 Annual Meeting. You may vote by granting a proxy or, for shares held through a broker, bank or other nominee, by submitting voting instructions to that broker, bank or other nominee. For shares held through a broker, bank or other nominee, follow the voting instructions on the form you receive from your broker, bank or other nominee. If you provide specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted as you have instructed. If you hold shares in your name and sign and return a proxy card without giving specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted as recommended by our Board. All shares represented by valid proxies received before the 2010 Annual Meeting will be voted.

Votes Needed to Hold the Meeting

The 2010 Annual Meeting will be held if a majority of the Extreme Networks outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote, whether present in person or represented by proxy, is represented at the meeting. This is called a quorum. Your shares will be counted for purposes of determining if there is a quorum if you either are present and vote in person at the 2010 Annual Meeting, or you have properly submitted a proxy card or voted by telephone or by using the Internet, even if you wish to abstain from voting on some or all matters introduced at the meeting. Votes for and against, abstentions and broker non-votes will each be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum. A broker non-vote occurs when a broker, bank or other nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the broker, bank or other nominee does not have discretionary power with respect to that item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner. Under the rules regulating brokers, banks and other nominees who are members of the New York Stock Exchange and the NASDAQ, brokers, banks or other nominees that have not received voting instructions from a customer ten days prior to the date of the 2010 Annual Meeting may vote the customer s shares in discretion of the broker, bank or other nominee on proposals regarding routine matters, which

in most cases includes the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm. However, the election of directors is considered a non-discretionary item, which means that your broker, bank or other nominee cannot vote your shares to elect directors without your specific instructions.

Matters to Be Voted On at the Meeting

The following proposals will be presented for your consideration at the 2010 Annual Meeting:

1. A proposal to elect two Class III directors to hold office for a three-year term and until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal, and

- 2. A proposal to amend and restate our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended to date, in order to declassify our Board of Directors.
- 3. A proposal to ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending June 26, 2011.

You will also be asked to transact such other business as may properly come before the 2010 Annual Meeting.

Cost of This Proxy Solicitation

We are paying the costs of the solicitation. We may reimburse brokers, banks and other nominees for reasonable expenses incurred in connection with forwarding our proxy materials to beneficial owners. Our employees, directors, officers and others may solicit proxies on our behalf, personally or by telephone, without additional compensation. We are soliciting proxies electronically through the Internet from stockholders who previously registered to receive proxy materials electronically through the Internet. In addition, we have engaged MacKenzie Partners, Inc. of New York City to assist in the soliciting of proxies for a fee of approximately \$12,500 plus reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

Attending the Meeting

Stockholders may attend our 2010 Annual Meeting in person. The 2010 Annual Meeting will be held at 2:00 p.m. Pacific Time on Wednesday, December 15, 2010 at the Executive Briefing Center at our headquarters located at 3585 Monroe Street, Santa Clara, California 95051.

You may vote shares held directly in your name in person at the 2010 Annual Meeting. If you choose to attend the 2010 Annual Meeting, please bring the enclosed proxy card or proof of identification for entrance to the meeting. If you want to vote shares that you hold in street name at the 2010 Annual Meeting, you must also request a legal proxy from your broker, bank or other nominee that holds your shares.

Changing Your Vote

You may revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time before the final vote at the 2010 Annual Meeting. You may do this by signing a new proxy card with a later date, voting on a later date by telephone or by using the Internet (only your latest telephone or Internet proxy is counted), or by attending the 2010 Annual Meeting and voting in person. However, your attendance at the 2010 Annual Meeting will not automatically revoke your proxy; you must specifically revoke your proxy. See *Voting Your Proxy* above for further instructions.

Our Voting Recommendations

Our Board recommends that you vote:

FOR the election of two Class III directors to hold office for a three-year term and until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal, and

FOR approval of the amendment and restatement of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended to date, in order to declassify our Board of Directors.

FOR ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending June 26, 2011.

Voting Results

The preliminary voting results will be announced at the 2010 Annual Meeting. The final voting results will be published in a current report on Form 8-K within four (4) days of adjournment of the 2010 Annual Meeting.

Electronic Delivery of Stockholder Communications

This year we are pleased to again offer our stockholders the opportunity to receive stockholder communications electronically. By signing up for electronic delivery, you can receive our Annual Reports on Form 10-K and proxy statements via email notification as soon as these are available. You may also submit your votes online in connection with stockholder meetings. This helps to reduce the number of paper documents in your personal files, eliminate duplicate mailings, conserve natural resources, and save on our printing and mailing costs. To sign up for electronic delivery, visit *http://investor.extremenetworks.com* and enter information for all of your Extreme Networks stockholdings. Your enrollment will be effective until canceled. You may access our notices of meeting of stockholders, proxy statements and Annual Reports on Form 10-K on the Internet at *http://investor.extremenetworks.com*. If you have questions about electronic delivery, please call our Investor Relations department at (408) 579-3030.

To reduce the expense of delivering duplicate voting materials to our stockholders who may have more than one Extreme Networks stock account, unless otherwise requested, pursuant to current householding rules, we are delivering only one set of voting materials, which includes proxy statements, proxy cards and Annual Reports on Form 10-K, to stockholders who share the same address.

How To Obtain A Separate Set of Voting Materials

If you share an address with another stockholder and have received only one set of voting materials, you may write or call us to request a separate copy of these materials at no cost to you. For future annual meetings, you may request separate voting materials, or request that we send only one set of voting materials to you if you are receiving multiple copies, by calling our proxy solicitor, MacKenzie Partners, Inc., toll free at (212) 929-5500 or our Investor Relations department at: (408) 579-3030. You may also write us at: Extreme Networks, Inc., 3585 Monroe Street, Santa Clara, CA 95051, Attn: Investor Relations. Upon such a request, we will promptly deliver voting materials to a stockholder at a shared address to which we delivered a single copy of voting materials.

PROPOSAL ONE:

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

We currently have a classified Board of Directors consisting of three Class I directors, three Class II directors and two Class III directors. The current term of the Class III directors expires on the date of the upcoming 2010 annual meeting.

In October 2010, our Board unanimously voted to amend and restate our Restated Certificate of Incorporation to declassify the Board and to recommend the approval of the matter by our stockholders at the 2010 annual meeting. That proposal is Proposal Two, as described under the heading Approval of the Amendment and Restatement of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as Amended to Date, in Order to Declassify our Board of Directors. If Proposal Two is approved, directors who have been elected to three-year terms prior to the effectiveness of the amendment, including directors elected at the 2010 meeting, will complete those terms. Beginning with the 2011 annual meeting, directors elected by our stockholders at the 2011 annual meeting and at subsequent meetings will be subject to election for a one-year term expiring at the next annual meeting.

At the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, our Board s nominees for election at the 2010 Annual Meeting as Class III directors are Charles Carinalli and John C. Shoemaker. Messrs. Carinalli and Shoemaker are each current members of our Board.

Please see below under the heading *Board of Directors* for information concerning each nominee. If elected, Messrs. Carinalli and Shoemaker will serve as directors until the annual meeting of stockholders in 2013 and until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal.

If either of Messrs. Carinalli and Shoemaker decline to serve or become unavailable for any reason, or if a vacancy otherwise occurs before the election, although management knows of no reason that this will occur, the proxies may be voted for a substitute nominee as the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee or our Board may designate.

Vote Required and Board of Directors Recommendation

The persons receiving the highest number of votes represented by outstanding shares of common stock present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the 2010 Annual Meeting will be elected, assuming a quorum is present. Votes for, votes to withhold authority and broker non-votes will each be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum, but broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the election. If you sign and return a proxy card without giving specific voting instructions as to the election of any director, your shares will be voted in favor of the nominees recommended by our Board.

OUR BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE NOMINEES NAMED ABOVE.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following table provides information concerning the age, tenure on our board of directors, or our Board, and class of our directors and nominees.

		Director	
Name	Age	Since	Class
Gordon L. Stitt, Chairman of the Board of Directors	54	1996	Ι
Kenneth Levy, Director	67	2001	Ι
Oscar Rodriguez, Director, President and Chief Executive Officer	50	2010	Ι
John H. Kispert, Director	47	2009	II
Edward B. Meyercord, III, Director	45	2009	II
Harry Silverglide, Director	64	2004	II
Charles Carinalli, Director	62	1996	III
John C. Shoemaker, Director	67	2007	III

Directors in Class I are serving a term expiring at the 2011 annual meeting of stockholders. Directors in Class II are serving a term expiring at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders. Directors in Class III are serving a term expiring at the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

The biographies of each of our directors below contains information regarding the person s service as a director, business experience, director positions held currently or at any time during the last five years, information regarding involvement in certain legal or administrative proceedings, if applicable, and the experiences, qualifications, attributes or skills that caused the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and our Board to determine that the person should serve as a director.

Class I Directors Serving a Term Expiring at the 2011 Annual Meeting

Gordon L. Stitt. Mr. Stitt has served as the Chairman of our Board since October 2006 and as a member of our Board since our inception in May 1996. In July 2009, Mr. Stitt also became a part-time employee performing services as a market development consultant for us. Mr. Stitt is one of our co-founders, served as our President and Chief Executive Officer from our inception until August 2006 and remained employed by us until December 2006. In 1989, Mr. Stitt co-founded Network Peripherals, Inc., a designer and manufacturer of high-speed networking technology. He served as Vice President of Marketing, then as Vice President and General Manager of the OEM Business Unit until 1995. Mr. Stitt holds a Bachelors of Science in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science from Santa Clara University and a Masters in Business Administration from the Haas School of Business of the University of California, Berkeley.

As our founder, and with experience as an executive in networking companies, Mr. Stitt has extensive experience in our industry and the markets for our products. Mr. Stitt provides our Board with expert perspective on industry trends and strategic opportunities, as well as insight into our operations, from execution, cultural, competitive and industry points of view.

Kenneth Levy. Mr. Levy has served as one of our directors since October 2001. Mr. Levy is a private investor and the Chairman Emeritus of KLA-Tencor Corporation, a supplier of process control and yield management solutions for the semiconductor industry. Mr. Levy co-founded KLA Instruments, the predecessor to KLA-Tencor, and served as its Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. He served as Chairman of KLA-Tencor until 2006. Mr. Levy has also served on the Boards of Directors of Juniper Networks, Saifun Semiconductor, PowerDsine Inc. and various private companies. Mr. Levy holds a Bachelors of Science in Electrical Engineering from City College of New York and a Masters of Science in Electrical Engineering from Syracuse University. Mr. Levy is a member of the National Academy of Engineering.

Mr. Levy s business, executive officer, and technology industry experience provides our Board with a valuable resource in understanding company operations and evaluating strategic opportunities.

Oscar Rodriguez. Mr. Rodriguez has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since August 2010 and as one of our directors since October 2010. From April 2007 to August 2010, Mr. Rodriguez served as a director and the Chief Executive Officer and President of Movius Interactive Corporation, a privately held leader in messaging, collaboration and mobile media solutions for service providers worldwide. Prior to joining Movius, beginning in April 2006, Mr. Rodriguez served as the Vice President of the Carrier Ethernet business and the Chief Marketing Officer of Alcatel-Lucent s Enterprise Business Group. From August 2003 until April 2006, Mr. Rodriguez served as Chief Executive Officer, President and a director of Riverstone Networks, Inc., a provider of carrier ethernet infrastructure solutions for business and residential communications services, until it was acquired by Lucent Technologies in April 2006. From October 2000 to August 2003, Mr. Rodriguez held various positions at Nortel Networks Corporation, a telecommunications systems company, including as Divisional President, Enterprise Solutions Business; Divisional President, Intelligent Internet Business; and Vice President Portfolio & Operations, Local Internet Business. Mr. Rodriguez is a member of the board of directors of EXAR Corporation, a semiconductor company based in Silicon Valley, and also sits on the Dean s Board of Advisors for the College of Engineering at the University of Central Florida. Mr. Rodriguez holds a B.S. in computer engineering from the University of Central Florida and an MBA from the Kenan-Flagler Business School at the University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.

Mr. Rodriguez has extensive executive experience in the communications technology industry and provides strong financial and operational expertise to our Board. As our current President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Rodriguez also provides our Board with important insights about our company and its operations.

Class II Directors Serving a Term Expiring at the 2012 Annual Meeting

John H. Kispert. Mr. Kispert has served as one of our directors since May 2009. In February 2009, Mr. Kispert was hired to serve as President and Chief Executive Officer of Spansion, Inc., a publicly-traded manufacturer of flash memory products, to oversee that company s reorganization of its business and is a director of Spansion. From 1995 to February 2009, Mr. Kispert held various executive management positions at KLA-Tencor Corporation, including President and Chief Operation Officer, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance and Accounting. Previously, Mr. Kispert served in a number of positions with the IBM Corporation. Mr. Kispert received his bachelor s degree in Political Science from Grinnell College and his MBA from the University of California, Los Angeles.

Mr. Kispert has extensive management and leadership experience and provides our Board with technology, leadership and financial expertise that aids our board in understanding corporate needs and strategic opportunities.

Edward B. Meyercord, III. Mr. Meyercord has served as one of our directors since October 2009. Mr. Meyercord currently serves as Chief Executive Officer and Director of Critical Alert Systems LLC, a private company that provides wireless communications services, where he has served since July 2010. Prior to Critical Alert Systems, he was the founder and President of Council Rock Advisors LLC, a private company that provides advisory services. From December 2006 until January 2009, Mr. Meyercord served as Chief Executive Officer of Cavalier Telephone & TV, a privately held voice and data services. Prior to the sale to Cavalier Telephone & TV in December 2006, Mr. Meyercord served as Chief Executive Officer and a member of the board of directors of Talk America, Inc., a publicly traded provider of phone and internet services to consumers and small businesses. Mr. Meyercord also serves on the board of directors of Tollgrade Communications Inc., a publicly traded provider of test and measurement systems for communications networks and electrical power grids. Mr. Meyercord received his bachelor s degree in Economics from Trinity College in Hartford, CT and his MBA from New York University.

Mr. Meyercord has extensive executive experience in corporate finance, risk assessment and management. His background in the telecommunications industry provides our Board with valuable industry expertise in one of our key markets.

Harry Silverglide. Mr. Silverglide has served as one of our directors since June 2004. From January 1997 to July 2002, Mr. Silverglide served as our Vice President of Sales. From May 1995 to January 1997, he served as Vice President of Western Region Sales for Bay Networks. From July 1994 to May 1995, he served as Vice President of Sales for Centillion Networks, a provider of LAN switching products which was acquired by Bay Networks in 1995.

Mr. Silverglide s experience, and particularly his extensive experience in sales and sales organizations, including his experience with our sales organization and distribution channels, provides our Board with valuable insight regarding sales management and sales strategy.

Class III Directors Serving a Term Expiring at the 2010 Annual Meeting

Charles Carinalli. Mr. Carinalli has served as one of our directors since October 1996 and is currently a Principal of Carinalli Ventures. From 1999 to May 2002, Mr. Carinalli was Chief Executive Officer and a director of Adaptive Silicon, Inc., a developer of semiconductors. From November 2000 to November 2001, Mr. Carinalli served as Chairman of Clearwater Communications, Inc., a privately held telecommunications company. From December 1996 to July 1999, Mr. Carinalli served as President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Wavespan, Inc., a developer of wireless broadband access systems that was acquired by Proxim, Inc. From 1970 to 1996, Mr. Carinalli served in various positions for National Semiconductor, Inc., a publicly traded company developing analog-based semiconductor products, most recently as Senior Vice President and Chief Technical Officer. Mr. Carinalli also serves on the boards of directors of Fairchild Semiconductor, a semiconductor company. Mr. Carinalli holds a Bachelors of Science in Electrical Engineering from the University of California, Berkeley and a Masters of Science in Electrical Engineering from Santa Clara University.

Mr. Carinalli provides our Board with extensive engineering and engineering management expertise, as well as management expertise and technology expertise, which aids our Board in understanding product development, engineering management and strategic planning, as well as risk assessment and planning.

John C. Shoemaker. Mr. Shoemaker has served as one of our directors since October 2007. From 1990 to June 2004, Mr. Shoemaker held various executive management positions at Sun Microsystems, Inc., including as Executive Vice President, Worldwide Operations Organizations, and Executive Vice President and General Manager for its Computer Systems Division. Previously, Mr. Shoemaker served in a number of senior executive positions with the Xerox Corporation, a provider of document management technology and services. Mr. Shoemaker is a director of Altera Inc., a provider of programmable logic solutions, and has served on the board of directors of SonicWALL, Inc., formerly a network security and remote access software firm. Mr. Shoemaker holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Hanover College and a Masters in Business Administration from Indiana University s Kelley School of Business, where he is Principal Director of the Indiana University Foundation.

Mr. Shoemaker has extensive executive experience in senior level management positions in the technology industry, particularly in hardware systems, and provides strong operational, management and financial expertise to our Board.

Arrangements Regarding Appointment of Directors

Oscar Rodriguez, our President and Chief Executive Officer, was appointed to our Board in connection with an offer letter of employment we entered into with him in August 2010. Pursuant to the offer letter, Mr. Rodriguez must immediately resign as a member of our Board upon the date his employment with us terminates.

In October 2010 we entered into an agreement with several entities and natural persons associated with Ramius Advisors, who we collectively refer to as the Ramius Group. Pursuant to the agreement, we increased the size of our Board to nine directors, creating a vacancy, and we agreed to a process for the appointment of a person to fill the vacant position. Ramius Group may to recommend to our Board a director candidate who is unaffiliated with the Ramius Group to fill the Class III vacancy. The candidate must qualify as independent under NASDAQ corporate governance standards and have relevant business and financial experience consistent with our guidelines relating to director qualifications and Board composition. Our Board may either elect such person to our Board or decline to elect such person and permit the Ramius Group to nominate a further person for our Board s consideration, until a director is elected to fill such vacancy. We agreed to appoint such director to certain committees of our Board. We also agreed to solicit and seek to obtain proxies in favor of an amendment to our certificate of incorporation for approval by our stockholders at the 2010 Annual Meeting to declassify our Board over a period of three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Board currently consists of eight directors, and one vacancy. Currently, the directors are divided into three classes Class I, Class II and Class III, with each class consisting of a minimum of two directors and each class having a three-year term. The Class I directors are Gordon L. Stitt, Kenneth Levy and Oscar Rodriguez. The Class II directors are John H. Kispert, Edward B. Meyercord, III and Harry Silverglide. The Class III directors are Charles Carinalli and John C. Shoemaker. As set forth in Proposal Two, we are submitting a proposal to our stockholders to declassify our Board over a three year period and provide for the annual election of all directors.

Our Board has determined that, other than Gordon L. Stitt and Oscar Rodriguez, each member of our Board is an independent director for purposes of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules. In making these independence determinations, our Board has concluded that these directors do not have an employment, business, family or other relationship which, in the opinion of our Board, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director.

Currently, our Class I, Class II and Class III directors serve until the annual meetings of stockholders to be held in 2011, 2012 and 2010, respectively, and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified. At each annual meeting of stockholders, the successors to directors whose terms expire at that meeting are elected to serve from the time of election and qualification until the third annual meeting following their election. Our Board has a mandatory retirement age of seventy (70).

Charles Carinalli was elected in 2004 by the independent members of our Board as the Lead Independent Director, or our Lead Director. The independent directors extended Mr. Carinalli s term by one year to October 2010. The Board may determine to elect Mr. Carinalli as Lead Director for one or more additional terms. Mr. Carinalli s duties as Lead Director include:

chairing executive sessions of the independent directors;

serving as liaison between the Chairman of our Board and the independent directors, including, communicating to the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, as appropriate, the results of executive sessions of the independent directors;

ensuring that independent directors have adequate opportunities to meet without management present;

serving as designated contact for communication to independent directors, including being available for consultation and direct communication with major stockholders;

ensuring that the independent directors have an opportunity to provide input on the agenda for meetings of our Board;

assuring that there is sufficient time for discussion of all agenda items; and

receiving, distributing to our Board and arranging responses to communications from stockholders, and being identified as the recipient of these communications in the annual meeting proxy statement.

Our Board elects our President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and all executive officers. All executive officers serve at the discretion of our Board. Each of our officers devotes his or her full time to our affairs. Our directors devote time to our affairs as is necessary to discharge their duties. In addition, our Board has the authority to retain its own advisers to assist it in the discharge of its duties. There are no family relationships among any of our directors, officers or key employees.

Board Leadership Structure

Our Board leadership structure currently consists of Chairman, a Chief Executive Officer and a Lead Director. In the current structure, the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board are separated, and the Lead Director is elected annually by all independent directors. Gordon L. Stitt has served as the Chairman of our Board since October 2006, while Oscar Rodriguez serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer. Separating these positions allows our Chief Executive Officer to focus on setting our strategic direction and for day-to-day leadership and performance, while allowing the Chairman of our Board to lead our Board in its fundamental role of providing advice to, and independent oversight of, management. As an important supplement to this structure, our Board appoints a Lead Director, generally to serve for a terms of no more than six years. Since July 2004 the independent members of our Board have elected Charles Carinalli to serve as Lead Director. The Chairman of our Board and our Chief Executive Officer periodically consult with our Lead Director on matters and issues facing the company, and our Lead Director liaises with the Chairman of our Board and with our Chief Executive Officer on behalf of our independent directors.

Our Board recognizes the time, effort, and energy that our Chief Executive Officer is required to devote to his position in the current business environment, as well as the commitments required to serve as the Chairman of our Board and as Lead Director, particularly as our Board s oversight responsibilities continue to grow. While our Bylaws and Corporate Governance Guidelines do not require that the Chairman of our Board and Chief Executive Officer positions be separate, our Board believes that separating these positions, and having a Lead Director liaise with each of them, is the appropriate leadership structure for us at this time and results in an effective balancing of responsibilities, experience and independent perspective to meet the current corporate governance needs and oversight responsibilities of our Board.

Board s Role in Risk Oversight

Our Board has an active role, as a whole and also at the committee level, in overseeing management of the risks we face. This role is one of informed oversight rather than direct management of risk. Our Board regularly reviews and consults with management on strategic direction, challenges and risks we face. Our Board also reviews and discusses with management quarterly financial results and forecasts. The Audit Committee of our Board oversees management of financial risks, and its charter tasks the committee to provide oversight of and review at least annually our risk management policies, including its investment policies and anti-fraud program. The Compensation Committee of our Board is responsible for overseeing the management of risks relating to and arising from our executive compensation plans and arrangements. These committees provide regular reports, generally on a quarterly basis, to the full Board.

Management is tasked with the direct management and oversight of legal, financial, and commercial compliance matters, which includes identification and mitigation of associated areas of risk. The General Counsel provides regular reports of legal risks to the Audit Committee and our Board. The Chief Financial Officer, the Controller and Vice President of Internal Audit provide regular reports to the Audit Committee

Table of Contents

concerning financial, tax and audit related risks. In addition, the Audit Committee receives periodic reports from management on our compliance programs and efforts, investment policy and practices and the results of various internal audit projects. Management and the Compensation Committee s compensation consultant provide analysis of risks related to our compensation programs and practices to the Compensation Committee.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Our Board held 13 meetings during the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010. No director serving on our Board in fiscal year 2010 attended fewer than 75% of the aggregate of the meetings of our Board and the meetings of the committees on which he served.

Executive Sessions

The independent members of our Board meet regularly in executive session (without the participation of executive officers or other non-independent directors), generally before or after a regularly scheduled Board meetings or at such other times requested by our independent directors. Executive sessions of the independent directors are chaired by our Lead Director. The executive sessions include discussions and recommendations regarding guidance to be provided to the Chief Executive Officer and such topics as the independent directors determine.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our Board has a separately-designated standing Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Our Board has adopted a written charter for each of these committees, each of which is available on our website at *http://www.extremenetworks.com/about-extreme/corp-governance.aspx*.

Current Committee Membership

	Audit		Nominating and
N	C	Compensation	Corporate Governance
Name	Committee	Committee	Committee
Charles Carinalli	Member	Chairman	Member
John H. Kispert	Chairman		
Kenneth Levy			Chairman
Harry Silverglide	Member		
John C. Shoemaker	Member	Member	
Edward B. Meyercord, III		Member	

Audit Committee. The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Carinalli, Kispert, Silverglide and Shoemaker. Each member of the Audit Committee has been determined by our Board to be independent for purposes of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules and the rules of the SEC as these rules apply to audit committee members. Our Board has determined that Mr. Kispert is an audit committee financial expert, as defined in the rules of the SEC. The Audit Committee retains our independent auditors, reviews and approves the planned scope, proposed fee arrangements and terms of engagement of the independent auditors, reviews the results of the annual audit of our financial statements and the interim reviews of our unaudited financial statements, evaluates the adequacy of accounting and financial controls, reviews the independence of our auditors, and oversees our financial reporting on behalf of our Board. The Audit Committee is also responsible for establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by us regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters, including the anonymous submission by our employees of concerns regarding accounting or auditing matters. In addition, the Audit Committee reviews with

Table of Contents

our independent auditors the scope and timing of their audit services and any other services they are asked to perform, the independent auditor s report on our consolidated financial statements following completion of their audit, and our critical accounting policies and procedures and policies with respect to our internal accounting and financial controls. The Audit Committee also assists our Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to financial risks, including risk management in the areas of financial reporting, internal controls, and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee held four meetings during the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010.

Compensation Committee. The current members of the Compensation Committee are Messrs. Carinalli, Shoemaker and Meyercord. Each member of the Compensation Committee has been determined by our Board to be independent for purposes of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules as they apply to compensation committee members. The Compensation Committee has responsibility for, among other things, discharging our Board s responsibilities relating to compensation and benefits of our officers, including responsibility for evaluating and reporting to our Board on matters concerning management performance, officer compensation and benefits plans and programs. In carrying out these responsibilities, the Compensation Committee is required to review all components of executive officer compensation for consistency with our compensation philosophy. The Compensation Committee also administers our stock option plans and stock incentive plans. The Compensation Committee assists our Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to the management of risks arising from our compensation policies and programs. The charter of the Compensation Committee provides that the Compensation Committee may delegate duties or responsibilities to subcommittees or to one member of the Compensation Committee from time to time, as appropriate. However, historically the Compensation Committee has delegated duties or responsibilities only under limited circumstances. Our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Head of Human Resources assist the Compensation Committee in its deliberations with respect to the compensation of our executive officers, except that our Chief Executive Officer does not play a role in the Compensation Committee s deliberations regarding his own compensation determination, other than discussing his performance objectives with the Compensation Committee. The other executive officers do not play a role in the Compensation Committee s deliberations regarding their own compensation determination, except that each executive officer discusses his or her individual performance objectives with our Chief Executive Officer, and our General Counsel may be present for deliberations and may provide advice to the Compensation Committee regarding legal issues associated with compensation plans and decisions. The Compensation Committee held thirteen meetings during the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010. For more information about the Compensation Committee, see the discussion below under the heading Executive Compensation.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The current members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are Messrs. Levy and Carinalli. Each member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has been determined by our Board to be independent for purposes of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules as they apply to nominating committee members. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee identifies, reviews, evaluates and nominates candidates to serve on our Board, is responsible for recommending corporate governance of our Board, each committee and management. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee assists our Board in its annual reviews of the performance of our Board, each committee and management of risks associated with board organization, membership and structure, succession planning for our directors and executive officers, and corporate governance. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held six meetings during the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During fiscal year 2010, members of our Compensation Committee included Charles Carinalli, Bob L. Corey, John C. Shoemaker, and Edward B. Meyercord, III. No member of the Compensation Committee was, during fiscal year 2010 or any prior period, an officer or employee of ours, except that Mr. Corey resigned as a director and as a member of all Board committees in July 2009 when he was appointed as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. None of our executive officers has served on the board of directors or compensation committee of any other entity that has, or has had, one or more executive officers who served as a member of our Board or Compensation Committee during the 2010 fiscal year.

Director Nominations

Director Qualifications. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers numerous factors in reviewing possible candidates for nomination as director, including:

the appropriate size of our Board and its Committees;

the perceived needs of our Board for particular skills, background and business experience;

the skills, background, reputation, and business experience of nominees and the skills, background, reputation, and business experience already possessed by other members of our Board;

nominees independence from management;

nominees experience with accounting rules and practices;

nominees background with regard to executive compensation;

applicable regulatory and listing requirements, including independence requirements and legal considerations, such as antitrust compliance;

the benefits of a constructive working relationship among directors; and

the desire to balance the considerable benefit of continuity with the periodic injection of the fresh perspective provided by new members.

While we do not have a formal diversity policy, in evaluating the qualifications of the candidates, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers many factors, including issues of character, judgment, independence, age, education, expertise, diversity of experience, length of service, other commitments and ability to serve on committees of our Board, as well as other individual qualities and attributes that contribute to board heterogeneity, including characteristics such as race, gender, and national origin. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee evaluates such factors, among others, and does not assign any particular weighting or priority to any of these factors.

Other than the foregoing there are no stated minimum criteria for director nominees, although the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may also consider other factors as it may deem, from time to time, are in the best interests of us and our stockholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that it is preferable that at least one member of our Board should meet the criteria for an audit committee financial expert as defined by SEC rules. Under applicable listing requirements, at least a majority of the members of our Board must meet the definition of independent director. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also believes it appropriate for one or more key members of management to participate as members of our Board.

Identifying and Evaluating Candidates for Nomination as Director. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee annually evaluates the current members of our Board whose terms are expiring and who are willing to continue in service against the criteria set forth above in determining whether to recommend these directors for election. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee regularly assesses the optimum size of our Board and its committees and the needs of our Board for various skills, background and business experience in determining if our Board requires additional candidates for nomination.

Candidates for nomination as director come to the attention of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee from time to time through incumbent directors, management, stockholders or third parties. These candidates may be considered at meetings of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee at any point during the year. Candidates are evaluated against the criteria set forth above. If the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes at any time that our Board requires additional candidates for nomination, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may poll directors and management for suggestions or conduct research to identify possible candidates and may engage, if the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes it is appropriate, a third party search firm to assist in identifying qualified candidates.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee evaluates any recommendation for director nominee proposed by a stockholder. In order to be evaluated in connection with the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee s established procedures for evaluating potential director nominees, any recommendation for director nominee submitted by a stockholder must be sent in writing to the Corporate Secretary, 3585 Monroe Street, Santa Clara, CA 95051, 120 days prior to the anniversary of the date proxy

```
13
```

statements were mailed to stockholders in connection with the prior year s annual meeting of stockholders, except that under our bylaws, if no annual meeting was held in the previous year or the date of the annual meeting has been changed by more than 30 calendar days from the date contemplated at the time of the previous year s proxy statement, notice by the stockholders to be timely must be received not later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which public announcement of the date of the meeting is first made. For purposes of the foregoing, public announcement shall mean disclosure in a broadly disseminated press release or in a document publicly filed by us with the SEC. The recommendation for director nominee submitted by a stockholder must contain the following information:

the candidate s name, age, contact information and present principal occupation or employment;

a description of the candidate s qualifications, skills, background, and business experience during, at a minimum, the last five years, including his/her principal occupation and employment and the name and principal business of any corporation or other organization in which the candidate was employed or served as a director; and

a statement signed by the candidate that the candidate is willing to be considered and willing to serve as a director if nominated and elected.

In addition, our bylaws permit stockholders to nominate directors for consideration at an annual meeting.

All directors and director nominees must submit a completed form of directors and officers questionnaire as part of the nominating process. The evaluation process may also include interviews and additional background and reference checks for non-incumbent nominees, at the discretion of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee evaluates incumbent directors, as well as candidates for director nominee submitted by directors, management and stockholders consistently using the criteria stated in our policies and procedures and selects the nominees that, in the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee s judgment, best suit the needs of our Board at the time.

Communications with Directors

Charles Carinalli has been selected by our independent directors as our Lead Independent Director and, as such, is responsible for receiving, distributing and arranging responses to communications from our stockholders to our Board. Stockholders may communicate with our Board by transmitting correspondence by mail, facsimile or email, addressed as follows:

Lead Director (or individually named director(s))

Extreme Networks, Inc.

3585 Monroe Street

Santa Clara, CA 95051

The Lead Director maintains a log of communications and transmit each communication as soon as practicable to the identified director addressee(s), unless (i) there are safety or security concerns that mitigate against further transmission of the communication; or (ii) the communication contains commercial matters not related to the stockholder s stock ownership, as determined by the Lead Director in consultation with outside legal counsel. Our Board or individual directors are advised of any communication withheld for safety, security or other reasons as soon as practicable.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

We use reasonable efforts to schedule our annual meeting of stockholders at a time and date to maximize attendance by directors, taking into account the directors schedules. In cases where management, in its reasonable business judgment, expects stockholder attendance at our annual meeting to be significant, we encourage director attendance at the annual meeting. Directors make every effort to attend our annual meeting of

stockholders when meaningful stockholder attendance at the meeting is anticipated. Messrs. Stitt, Shoemaker and Carinalli attended our 2009 annual meeting of stockholders.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, requires our executive officers, directors and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of our common stock to file initial reports of beneficial ownership and reports of changes in beneficial ownership with the SEC. These persons are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms filed by such person. Based solely on our review of the forms furnished to us and written representations from certain reporting persons, we believe that all filing requirements applicable to our executive officers, directors and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of our common stock were complied with in the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, except that Forms 3 were not timely filed for Suresh K. Gopalakrishnan, Paul A. Hooper, Diane Honda and Justin DiMacchia, and Forms 4 for each of our directors were not timely filed with respect to their annual equity compensation awarded in December 2009.

Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance Materials

Our Board has adopted a charter for its Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees, which are available on our website at *http://www.extremenetworks.com/about-extreme/corp-governance.aspx*. Our Board has also adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our employees, officers and directors. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics can be found on our website at *http://www.extremenetworks.com/about-extreme/corp-governance.aspx*.

We believe that good corporate governance is essential to ensure that we are managed for the benefit of stockholders. Our Board has adopted our Corporate Governance Guidelines to address key corporate governance issues. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing the Corporate Governance Guidelines and recommending to our Board any changes to them. The Corporate Governance Guidelines can be found on our website at *http://www.extremenetworks.com/about-extreme/corp-governance.aspx*.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

During our fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, the compensation policies for service on our Board and its committees were, and the compensation paid to our directors was, as follows:

Cash Compensation

Each non-employee director and Gordon L. Stitt receives (a) \$40,000 in cash compensation annually for service in this position and (b) the applicable compensation set forth below for serving as a chair or as a member of one or more of the committees of our Board. For service on any special committee that may be formed by our Board from time to time, our Board determines compensation on a case-by-case basis upon a recommendation from the Compensation Committee based on the anticipated amount of time and work related to service on the special

committee and other factors as the Compensation Committee may consider. Each director receives reimbursement of expenses related to attendance of meetings of our Board and its committees.

Annual Committee Member Compensation	
Audit Committee	\$ 20,000
Compensation Committee	\$ 10,000
Nominating and Governance Committee	\$ 10,000
Additional Annual Retainers for Committee Chair	
Audit Committee Chair	\$ 10,000
Compensation Committee Chair	\$ 10,000

Equity Compensation

Each non-employee director and Gordon L. Stitt automatically is granted an initial 8,333 shares of our restricted stock and an initial option to purchase 25,000 shares of our common stock. These options and restricted stock grants are made under our 2005 Plan, pursuant to the standard option agreement used under the 2005 Plan for directors. The grant date for awards is generally the second trading day following the public announcement of quarterly financial results following the director s appointment. Each option and restricted stock grant vests 1/3 each year (or, if earlier in any year, 1/3 on the date of the annual meeting of stockholders in that year), subject to the respective director s continuous service on our Board for that period. There is a two year post-termination exercise period for options granted to non-employee directors and Gordon L. Stitt during and after fiscal year 2005.

On the date of each annual meeting of our stockholders, each non-employee director and Gordon L. Stitt automatically is granted 5,000 shares of our restricted stock and an option to purchase 15,000 shares of our common stock. These options and restricted stock grants are made under the 2005 Plan, pursuant to the standard option agreement used under the 2005 Plan for directors. The exercise price per share of each option, and the grant price of each share of restricted stock, is the closing sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market at the close of business on the date of grant (the date of the annual meeting of stockholders). Each option and restricted stock grant vests in full on the date one year after the date of grant (or, if earlier, the date of the next subsequent annual meeting of stockholders), subject to the respective director s continuous service on our Board for that period.

Following the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders, each non-employee director and Gordon L. Stitt received a grant of 5,000 shares of our restricted stock and an option to purchase 15,000 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price of \$2.82. In connection with Mr. Meyercord s appointment to our Board in October 2009, he received a grant of 8,333 shares of our restricted stock and an option to purchase 25,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.80. In connection with Mr. Meyercord s our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock and an option to purchase 25,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price of \$2.000 shares of stock at an exercise price stock at an exercise price stock at a stock at an exercise price stock at a sto

In July 2001, our Board ratified and approved a policy regarding the acceleration of vesting of shares subject to options granted to directors upon a change-in-control. Under the policy, in the event of a change in control that occurs prior to a director s termination of service with us, the shares subject to options vest fully. The policy defines a change-in-control as a single or series of sales or exchanges of voting stock, a merger or consolidation, the sale, or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets, or a liquidation wherein the stockholders immediately before the change-in-control do not retain, immediately after the change-in-control, more than 50% of the total combined voting power of us or the corporation to which the assets were transferred. This policy applies to all options granted to directors after July 2001.

2010 Director Compensation

The compensation information for our non-employee directors and Gordon L. Stitt during the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010 is set forth below:

	Director Fees			
	Earned			
	or Paid	Stock	Option	
	in Cash	Awards	Awards	Total
Name	(\$)	(\$)(1)	(\$)(1)	(\$)

John H. Kispert	70,000(2)	33,433	38,695	142,128
Charles Carinalli	90,000 ₍₃₎	14,100	16,805	120,905
Edward B. Meyercord, III	33,000 ⁽⁴⁾	31,516	37,562	102,078
John C. Shoemaker	70,000(5)	14,100	16,805	100,905
Harry Silverglide	60,000 ₍₆₎	14,100	16,805	90,905
Kenneth Levy	50,000(7)	14,100	16,805	80,905
Gordon L. Stitt	40,000(8)	14,100	16,805	70,905

- (1) Represents the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718 and do not reflect whether the director has actually realized a financial benefit from the award. For information on the assumptions used to calculate the value of the awards, refer to Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010. In accordance with SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions.
- (2) Mr. Kispert was appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee in July 2009. Consists of \$40,000 for annual retainer, \$20,000 for service on the Audit Committee, and \$10,000 for service as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
- (3) Consists of \$40,000 for annual retainer, \$20,000 for service on the Audit Committee, \$20,000 for service as the Chairman of the Compensation Committee and \$10,000 for service on the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.
- (4) Mr. Meyercord was appointed to our Board in October 2009 and to the Compensation Committee in January 2010. Consists of \$40,000 for annual retainer and \$8,000 for service on the Compensation Committee.
- (5) Consists of \$40,000 for annual retainer, \$20,000 for service on the Audit Committee and \$10,000 for service on the Compensation Committee.
- (6) Consists of \$40,000 for annual retainer and \$20,000 for service on the Audit Committee.
- (7) Consists of \$40,000 for annual retainer and \$10,000 for service as the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.
- (8) Consists of \$40,000 for annual retainer.

PROPOSAL TWO:

APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT OF OUR RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION, AS AMENDED TO DATE, IN ORDER TO DECLASSIFY OUR BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

Background

We have had a classified Board since our April 1999 initial public offering. We are proposing to amend and restate our Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, (the Restated Certificate) to declassify our Board in phases. A summary of the material changes that will result if our stockholders approve the proposed changes to the Restated Certificate is set forth below under *Summary of Proposed Amendments to the Certificate of Incorporation*.

Classified boards of directors have been widely adopted and have a long history in corporate law. They have been viewed as a means of promoting stability and continuity of experience on a board of directors primarily because the majority of directors at any given time will have had at least one year of experience on the board, thus assisting a company in its long-term strategic planning efforts. Also, because it would take at least two elections for a potential hostile acquirer to gain control of a classified board without the cooperation of the board, a classified board structure may enhance stockholder value by making it more likely that a party seeking to gain control of a target company will engage in arm s-length discussions with the target s existing board instead of launching a proxy contest in an attempt to gain control of the board.

Many investors and others, however, have come to the view that a classified board structure effectively reduces the accountability of directors because it limits the ability of stockholders to evaluate and elect all directors on an annual basis. Many investors believe that the annual election of directors is important for stockholders to influence the composition and implementation of corporate governance policies. Opponents of classified boards also believe they inappropriately discourage takeover proposals and proxy contests that could have the effect of increasing stockholder value.

In reaching its determination, the Board concluded that it should propose to declassify the Board due to the following factors:

The input of stockholder advocates recommending declassification and input from stockholders asking us to consider, or adopt, a declassified Board;

Our negation of a settlement with a major stockholder which had proposed the submission of stockholder proposal at the 2010 Annual Meeting, during which discussion the specific terms of Proposal 2 were agreed to.

In connection with the adoption of the proposed amendments to the Restated Certificate, and contingent upon our stockholders approving this Proposal Two, our Board has also approved the amendment and restatement of our current bylaws in order to conform the bylaws to changes that would be effected should the stockholders approve this proposal. Our Board has the power to amend our bylaws without stockholder

approval. As a result, separate approval by our stockholders is not required to adopt the bylaw amendments.

Summary of Proposed Amendments to the Certificate of Incorporation

The current Restated Certificate, in Article SIXTH, divides our directors into three classes. The classification of the Board results in staggered elections, with each of the three different class of directors up for election every third year. If the number of directors is changed, any additional director of any class elected to fill a newly created directorship resulting from an increase in such class holds office for a term that coincides with the remaining term of that class. Additionally, the current Restated Certificate provides that the person appointed to or elected to fill any vacancy on the Board resulting from death, resignation or removal shall hold office for a term that coincides with the remaining term of the class to which they have been elected expires.

On October 19, 2010, our Board adopted resolutions approving, and recommending to our stockholders for approval, the amendment and restatement of the Restated Certificate. We are seeking the approval of the amendment and restatement of the current Restated Certificate to declassify the Board. The proposed amendments to the Restated Certificate will phase out the classification of the Board over a period of three years. Although current directors, including the Class III directors elected at the 2010 Annual Meeting of stockholders, would serve out their full terms, commencing with the 2011 annual meeting of stockholders, directors elected to succeed those directors whose terms then expire would be elected for a one-year term expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders, which would result in the full declassification of our Board commencing with the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders.

If approved by the stockholders, this proposal would become effective upon the filing of an amended Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the state of Delaware. The full text of the amended Restated Certificate of Incorporation is attached as Appendix A, reflecting the proposed amendments to Article SIXTH of our Restated Certificate. If approved, Article SIXTH, Section A of the Restated Certificate would read as follows:

The number of directors shall initially be set at nine (9) and, thereafter, shall be fixed from time to time exclusively by the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the total number of authorized directors (whether or not there exist any vacancies in previously authorized directorships at the time any such resolution is presented to the Board for adoption). Subject to the succeeding provisions of this Section A, the directors shall be divided into three classes, designated Class I, Class II and Class III. At the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders, the Class III directors shall be elected for a term expiring at the third succeeding annual meeting of stockholders (the 2013 Annual Meeting), and any director appointed to fill the vacant Class III position shall serve for a term expiring at the 2013 Annual Meeting. At each annual meeting of stockholders commencing with the 2011 annual meeting of stockholders, directors elected to succeed those directors whose terms then expire shall be elected for a term expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders. Commencing with the 2013 Annual Meeting, the foregoing classification of the Board of Directors shall cease, and all directors shall be elected or appointed for terms expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock then outstanding, a vacancy resulting from the removal of a director by the stockholders as provided in Section C below may be filled at a special meeting of the stockholders held for that purpose. All directors shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which elected, and until their respective successors are elected, except in the case of the death, resignation, or removal of any director.

If this proposal does not receive the required number of votes in favor, the Restated Certificate will not be amended, our Board will remain classified and all directors will continue to be elected to serve three-year terms.

Vote Required and Board of Directors Recommendation

The proposal to amend and restate the Restated Certificate of Incorporation requires the affirmative vote of the holders of at least sixty-six and two thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the voting power of all outstanding shares of the capital stock of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class.

OUR BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE PROPOSAL TO AMEND AND RESTATE THE RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF THE COMPANY IN ORDER TO DECLASSIFY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

PROPOSAL THREE:

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 26, 2011

In November 2010, the Audit Committee appointed KPMG LLP (KPMG) as the Company s independent registered public accounting firm to serve as independent auditors to audit our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 26, 2011. Prior to November 2010, Ernst & Young LLP (Ernst & Young) served as the Company s independent registered public accounting firm since 1997. A representative of KPMG is expected to be present at the 2010 Annual Meeting, will have an opportunity to make a statement if desired and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Ernst & Young s audit reports on the Company s consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal years ended June 27, 2010 and June 28, 2009 did not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. Ernst & Young s report on the Company s consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 27, 2010 did contain a separate paragraph stating: As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal year 2008, Extreme Networks, Inc. changed its method of accounting for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the guidance provided in FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes), and Ernst & Young s report on the Company s consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 28, 2009 did contain a separate paragraph stating: As discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal year 2008, Extreme Networks, Inc. changed its method of accounting for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the guidance provided in FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes), and Ernst & Young s report on the Company s consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 28, 2009 did contain a separate paragraph stating: As discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal year 2008, Extreme Networks, Inc. changed its method of accounting for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the guidance provided in Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. The audit reports of Ernst & Young on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of June 27, 2010 and June 28, 2009, respectively, did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles.

During the fiscal years ended June 27, 2010 and June 28, 2009, respectively, and in the subsequent interim period through September 26, 2010, there were (i) no disagreements between the Company and Ernst & Young on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Ernst & Young, would have caused Ernst & Young to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in their reports on the financial statements for such years, and (ii) no reportable events as that term is defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.

The Company provided Ernst & Young with a copy of the disclosures it made in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC (the Report) prior to the time the Report was filed with the SEC on November 10, 2010. The Company requested that Ernst & Young furnish a letter addressed to the SEC stating whether or not it agreed with the statements made therein. A copy of Ernst & Young s letter dated November 10, 2010 was attached as Exhibit 16.1 to the Report.

In deciding to engage KPMG, the Audit Committee reviewed auditor independence and existing commercial relationships with KPMG, and concluded that KPMG has no commercial relationship with the Company that would impair its independence. The Company did not, nor did anyone on its behalf, consult KPMG during the Company s two most recent fiscal years and any subsequent interim period prior to the Company s engagement of KPMG regarding the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction (completed or proposed), the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company s financial statements, any matter being the subject of disagreement or reportable event or any other matter as defined in Regulation S-K, Item 304 (a)(1)(v).

Representatives of our independent auditors normally attend most meetings of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee s policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by our independent auditors. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other

Table of Contents

services. Any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services. Our independent auditors and management are required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by our independent auditors in accordance with this pre-approval policy. During fiscal year 2010 and 2009, all fees paid to our independent auditors were pre-approved in accordance with this policy without exception.

The Audit Committee on an annual basis reviews the services performed by our independent auditors and reviews and approves the fees charged by our independent auditors. Prior to replacing Ernst & Young with KPMG, the Audit Committee considered the role of Ernst & Young in providing tax and other non-audit services to us and concluded that these services were compatible with Ernst & Young s independence as our independent auditors.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed to us for the fiscal years ended June 27, 2010 and June 28, 2009 by Ernst & Young LLP:

	 al Year Ended une 27, 2010	 Year Ended 1e 28, 2009	
Audit fees ⁽¹⁾	\$ 1,482,000	\$ 1,339,000	
Audit related fees ⁽²⁾	\$ 78,000	\$ 99,000	
Tax fees ⁽³⁾	\$ 204,000	\$ 175,000	
	\$ 1,764,000	\$ 1,613,000	

(1) Consists of fees for work performed on:

The integrated audit of our annual consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting at the end of the fiscal year;

Reviews of our unaudited quarterly financial statements; and

Statutory and regulatory audits, consents and other services related to SEC matters.

- (2) Consists of fees for financial accounting and reporting consultations.
- (3) Consists of fees for domestic and foreign tax planning, consultation, special projects and the preparation of various federal, state and local tax returns.

Vote Required and Board of Directors Recommendation

Stockholder ratification of the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm is not required by our Bylaws or otherwise. Our Board, however, is submitting the selection of KPMG LLP to stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee and our Board will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee and our Board in their discretion may direct the appointment of different independent auditors at any time during the year if they determine that such a change would be in the best interests of us and our stockholders.

Approval of this proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast affirmatively or negatively on the proposal, assuming a quorum is present. Votes for, against, abstentions and broker non-votes will each be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum, but abstentions and broker non-votes will not have any effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal. If you sign and return a proxy card without giving specific voting instructions on this proposal, your shares will be voted in favor of the proposal.

OUR BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE PROPOSAL TO RATIFY KPMG LLP AS EXTREME NETWORKS INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 26, 2011.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, as of October 15, 2010, certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock by: (i) each stockholder known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common stock, (ii) each named executive officer, (iii) each of our directors and director nominees, and (iv) all executive officers and directors as a group.

Except as otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner is c/o Extreme Networks, Inc., 3585 Monroe Street, Santa Clara, CA 95051.

Name and Address ⁽¹⁾	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership ⁽²⁾	Percent of Class ⁽³⁾
Holders of Greater than 5%: Wells Fargo & Company 420 Montgomery Street San Francisco, California 94104	6,286,319(4)	6.9%
Heartland Advisors, Inc. 789 N. Water St. Suite 500 Milwaukee, WI 53202	6,160,100 ₍₅₎	6.8%
Renaissance Technologies, L.L.C. 800 Third Avenue, 33rd Floor New York, NY 10022	5,360,295 ₍₆₎	5.9%
BlackRock, Inc. 3585 Monroe St Santa Clara CA 95051	5,664,507(7)	6.2%
Soros Fund Management LLC 888 Seventh Avenue, 33 rd Floor New York, New York 10106	8,129,352 ₍₈₎	8.9%
Entities Associated with the Ramius Group 599 Lexington Avenue, 20th Floor New York, New York 10022	5,774,900 ⁽⁹⁾	6.4%
Directors and Named Executive Officers:		
John H. Kispert	56,667 ⁽¹⁰⁾	*
Charles Carinalli	519,216(11)	*
Edward B. Meyercord, III	36,667 ⁽¹²⁾	*
John C. Shoemaker	113,333 ⁽¹³⁾	*
Harry Silverglide	186,327 ⁽¹⁴⁾	*
Kenneth Levy	640,071 ⁽¹⁵⁾	*
Gordon Stitt	4,135,033(16)	4.6%
Oscar Rodriguez	0	0
Bob L. Corey	551,670 ⁽¹⁷⁾	*
Suresh K. Gopalakrishnan	443,409 ⁽¹⁸⁾	*
Paul A. Hooper	$451,347^{(19)}$	*
Michael Seaton	216,093 ⁽²⁰⁾	*
Mark A. Canepa ⁽²¹⁾	75,314	*%
Karen Rogge ⁽²²⁾	0	0
All Executive Officers and Directors as a Group (14 persons)	7,573,273	8.1%

* Less than 1%

- (1) Except as otherwise indicated, the persons named in this table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them, subject to community property laws where applicable and to the information contained in the footnotes to this table.
- (2) Under the rules of the SEC, a person is deemed to be the beneficial owner of shares that can be acquired by the person within 60 days upon the exercise of options.
- (3) Calculated on the basis of 90,877,654 shares of common stock outstanding as of October 15, 2010, provided that any additional shares of common stock that a stockholder has the right to acquire within 60 days of October 15, 2010 are deemed to be outstanding for purposes of calculating that stockholder s percentage of beneficial ownership. These shares are not, however, deemed to be outstanding and beneficially owned for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.
- (4) According to a Schedule 13G/A filed by the stockholder with the SEC on January 22, 2010.
- (5) According to a Schedule 13G/A filed by the stockholder with the SEC on February 10, 2010.
- (6) According to a Schedule 13G/A filed by the stockholder with the SEC on February 12, 2010.
- (7) According to a Schedule 13G filed by the stockholder with the SEC on January 29, 2010.
- (8) According to a Schedule 13G/A filed by the stockholder with the SEC on February 16, 2010.
- (9) According to a Schedule 13D/A filed by the stockholders with the SEC on October 10, 2010.
- (10) Includes 23,334 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010. Includes 33,333 shares held by the Kispert Family Trust UTD September 13, 2000.
- (11) Includes 305,000 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (12) Includes 23,334 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (13) Includes 70,000 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (14) Includes 170,000 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (15) Includes 280,000 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010. Includes 10,000 shares held in the Gloria and Kenneth Levy Foundation, a charitable foundation with Gloria & Kenneth Levy as trustees. Includes 330,071 shares held in The Levy Family Trust, DTD 2-18-83, Gloria and Kenneth Levy are trustees.
- (16) Includes 460,000 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (17) Includes 323,750 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (18) Includes 336,042 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (19) Includes 341,927 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (20) Includes 176,093 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 15, 2010.
- (21) Mr. Canepa resigned as our President, Chief Executive Officer and director in October 2009. Amounts reflect shares reported in the final Form 4 filed by Mr. Canepa, filed with the SEC on August 18, 2009, and assume no subsequent transactions in our shares.
- (22) Ms. Rogge resigned as our Chief Financial Officer in July 2009. Amounts assume no subsequent transactions in our shares.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER MATTERS

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our executive compensation philosophy and objectives are to provide a competitive overall compensation package that allows us attract high quality candidates for senior leadership positions, to retain these employees and to establish a total compensation program which motivates and rewards individual and team performance in alignment with our goals, principal among which is the creation of stockholder value. We establish market competitive target levels of total compensation, focusing on both current pay and the opportunity for long term and future compensation. We target compensation at the 50th percentile for salary, total cash compensation and long term incentives. Annual compensation for a given executive is determined with reference to competitive market data, as well as the individual s experience, knowledge, skills, education, performance and importance to our business. Our compensation program is designed to motivate individual and team accountability for our absolute and relative competitive performance.

Named Executive Officers

This *Executive Compensation* section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A presents compensation earned by our named executive officers (as defined by SEC rules). For the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, our named executive officers and their respective titles were as follows:

Name	Title
Bob L. Corey	Acting President and Chief Executive Officer during Fiscal 2010 and Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Suresh K. Gopalakrishnan	Vice President, Engineering
Paul A. Hooper	Chief Marketing Officer
Michael L. Seaton	Vice President of Worldwide Sales and Services
Mark A. Canepa	Former President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Karen Rogge	Former Chief Financial Officer

Bob L. Corey was appointed as our Acting President and Chief Executive Officer in October 2009, and he has served as our Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer since July 2009. Mark A. Canepa resigned as our President and Chief Executive Officer in October 2009, and Karen Rogge resigned as our Chief Financial Officer in July 2009. Michael L. Seaton was appointed as Vice President of Worldwide Sales and Services in May 2009. Paul A. Hooper was appointed as our Chief Marketing Officer and Suresh K. Gopalakrishnan was appointed as our Vice President, Engineering in October 2009, each of whom was employed by us at the time of his appointment. Subsequent to the end of our fiscal year, Oscar Rodriguez was appointed as our President and Chief Executive Officer, and a summary of our employment agreement with Mr. Rodriguez is provided in the *Summary of Employment and Other Agreements* section below.

Compensation Process

Throughout the year, our Compensation Committee Chair meets with our Head of Human Resources to monitor issues relating to executive compensation. At the end of the fiscal year, our CEO conducts a quantitative assessment of each named executive officer s performance for the past fiscal year based upon the officer s individual and team business goals and objectives. Our CEO and our Head of Human Resources also review the competitive benchmarking assessments of similarly situated executives in comparable companies in our industry, the competitive position of us relative to comparable companies in our industry, and the available salary and

equity merit increase budget for the company. Our CEO then makes specific recommendations to the Compensation Committee for any changes to base salary, target bonus opportunities, other cash incentives and equity awards, if appropriate. The Compensation Committee considers these proposals and makes any final approvals required in executing their duties. In addition, the Compensation Committee similarly assesses the performance of our CEO, based on the achievement of the approved financial goals, performance metrics, and strategic objectives identified to improve our operating performance. Our CEO is not present at the time the Compensation Committee reviews his performance and discusses his compensation. The Compensation Committee retains an independent compensation consultant to complete the assessment by providing third-party review of plans and to provide guidance to the CEO, Head of Human Resources and the Committee in making compensation decisions.

Peer Group Selection and Benchmarking

The Compensation Committee seeks to set the base salary and total compensation of our executives, including our named executive officers, at the 50th percentile of the compensation of similarly-situated executives in comparable companies in our industry with whom we directly compete in our hiring and retention of executives. However, the Compensation Committee has the authority to approve position specific compensation packages that are above or below this level based on the executive s specific experience, knowledge, skills, education, performance and importance to the business. In addition to these factors, the Compensation Committee also considers the information provided by its advisors and the comparative compensation of our other officers when determining an individual s actual pay level.

For our fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, the Compensation Committee engaged Radford, an Aon Consulting Company, as an independent advisor to provide competitive market data regarding the components of our executive compensation. Radford reports directly to the Compensation Committee, and works with management to gain access to compensation information. We paid the fees charged by Radford for its engagement by the Compensation Committee with respect to its services related to fiscal year 2010 compensation.

For the Compensation Committee s deliberations regarding our fiscal year 2010 executive compensation, the Compensation Committee reviewed a Radford Executive Benchmark Survey which includes many of the following companies which make up our peer group:

3Com Corporation

Adaptec, Inc.

ADTRAN, Inc.

Avocent Corporation

Brocade Communications Systems, Inc.

Ciena Corporation

Emulex Corporation

F5 Networks, Inc.

Foundry Networks, Inc. (acquired by Brocade)

Harmonic Inc.

MRV Communications Inc.

NETGEAR, Inc.

Novatel Wireless, Inc.

Packeteer, Inc.

QLogic Corporation Quantum Corporation Rackable Systems, Inc. RadiSys Corporation STEC Inc.

Westell Technologies, Inc.

The Radford assessment examined a range of pay levels including the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile of the applicable benchmark group to reflect a range of pay to be considered when determining individual pay elements.

Compensation Program Elements

The main elements of our compensation program and their respective purposes are as follows:

Element	Purpose
Base salary	Attract and retain talented employees. Serve as a primary element of compensation.
Annual cash incentives	Encourage and reward employees who achieve overall corporate goals and individual objectives, particularly in the short term.
Annual long-term equity	Encourage and reward employees who achieve overall corporate goals and individual objectives, particularly
incentives	in the long term. Encourage employee retention. Align the interests of officers and stockholders.
Change in control and	Retain officers during the pendency of a proposed change in control transaction. Avoid adverse impacts to the
severance benefits	morale of officers and uncertainty regarding continued employment. Align the interests of officers and
	stockholders in the event of a change in control.
Benefit plans	Attract and retain talented employees. Provide assurance of financial support in the event of illness or injury.
	Encourage retirement savings. Encourage additional equity ownership by employees.

The Compensation Committee does not have a set formula for determining the mix of pay elements for named executive officers. Other than certain change in control and severance benefits, our executives generally receive only compensation elements that are provided to our rank-and-file employees.

2010 Compensation Decisions

As a result of the process and purposes described above, in 2010 the Compensation Committee made the following compensation decisions with respect to our named executive officers:

Base Salary

Due to economic conditions and recent changes in our executive officers, the Compensation Committee, together with our Head of Human Resources and Acting CEO, decided not to review the base salaries of our executive officers for the fiscal year ending June 27, 2010. However, each of Mr. Corey, Gopalakrishnan, Hooper and Seaton were appointed to new positions during the fiscal year and our Compensation Committee reviewed their base salaries in connection with their assumption of those roles, as summarized below.

In July 2009, the Compensation Committee negotiated and approved an offer to Mr. Corey, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, which included an annual base salary of \$375,000, a one-time option to acquire 450,000 shares of our common stock, and a target bonus of 60% of his then current annual base salary.

When Mr. Corey assumed the Acting CEO position, in order to compensate Mr. Corey for the additional responsibility he assumed, the Compensation Committee approved an increase in his annual base salary to \$472,200 and an option to acquire 100,000 shares of our common stock. In addition, in order to incent Mr. Corey to remain with the Company and to reward him for his service as Acting CEO, and during his tenure as Acting CEO, the Compensation Committee approved a special bonus arrangement providing for payment of an annual amount of \$64,800 pro-rated through the date the new Chief Executive Officer is appointed. The Compensation Committee also approved certain severance provisions summarized below under the heading *Summary of Employment and Other Agreements*. Mr. Corey s base compensation is within our benchmark target, as were the increases made while he was serving as our Acting CEO.

When Mr. Seaton was appointed our Vice President Worldwide Sales and Service in May 2010, the Compensation Committee approved an increase in his base salary by \$10,000 to \$275,000. The Compensation Committee maintained his target bonus of 40% of his 2010 base salary prior to the new appointment, but the Compensation Committee approved his participation in a 2011 Senior Vice President Sales Commission Plan commencing in our 2011 fiscal year (in lieu of participation in our 2011 Executive Incentive Plan). In making these determinations, the Compensation Committee considered a variety of factors, including the timing of the transition and benchmark targets.

For additional information reading the Compensation Committee s decisions with respect to named executive officers who resigned during the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, including a summary of separation arrangements, see the discussion below under the heading *Summary of Employment and Other Agreements*.

Annual Cash Incentives

Our Compensation Committee establishes an Executive Incentive Plan each year, designed to reward our executives for the successful management of our business. The structure and elements of the plan are reviewed and modified annually based upon expectations for our business based on our Board-approved operating plan. In July 2009, our Board, upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee, approved the terms of our Fiscal 2010 Executive Incentive Bonus Plan, or our 2010 Incentive Plan.

Under the terms of the 2010 Incentive Plan, as initially approved, the Compensation Committee established bonus targets for our named executive officers under our 2010 Incentive Plan. The individual target bonus percentages for Messrs. Corey, Mr. Seaton, Hooper and Gopalakrishnan were 60%, 40%, 40% and 40%, respectively. The Compensation Committee also approved a formula for determining the bonus pool for all executives and employees based upon a matrix of operating profit and revenues, with the bonus pool increasing (or decreasing) from that targeted level if the company s results exceeded (or fell below) those target levels. The Compensation Committee determined that the resulting pool would be allocated 20% to executives and 80% to other employees. The Compensation Committee set the minimum revenue levels and the minimum non-GAAP operating profit required before a bonus pool would be established, and specific bonus pool amounts were set for higher levels of total revenue and non-GAAP operating profit. Under the matrix, each executive would receive 100% of their target bonus if we achieve total revenue and non-GAAP operating profit objectives that the Compensation Committee believed would challenge our executive officers, not to function as modest targets where achievement was relatively assured.

As a result of continuing economic uncertainty, we experienced substantial challenges in achieving our revenue and operating profit goals in the first half of our fiscal year ended June 27, 2010. Based upon economic conditions at the time, our operating plan for the year was revised, and the Compensation Committee determined that our 2010 Incentive Plan goals could not be achieved. With the advice from its compensation consultant, in February 2010 the Compensation Committee determined to substantially re-design the 2010 Incentive Plan. First, the Compensation Committee determined to fund the 2010 Incentive Plan with awards of restricted stock unit, or RSUs instead of cash, providing an additional incentive to improve overall performance, and therefore stock price, as well as preserving cash. Second, the Compensation Committee determined that, to provide an incentive

to achieve performance in the second half of the 2010, the performance goals under the 2010 Incentive Plan should be based on financial results only for the second half of the fiscal year. Third, the Compensation Committee determined that a portion of the incentive should be structured as a retention grant to incent executives to remain with us through the year, even if economic conditions or other factors were preventing us from meeting our revised objectives.

Accordingly, the Compensation Committee revised the 2010 Incentive Plan such that each executive officer received three RSU awards: (i) an award that would vest upon achievement of a base plan for total revenue and non-GAAP operating profit, subject to the officer s continued employment with us; (ii) an award that would vest if the Company achieved a stretch plan for total revenue and non-GAAP operating profit, subject to the officer s continued employment with us; and (iii) an award that would vest if the officer remained employed with us in August 2010. The Compensation Committee viewed the base plan as an achievable goal and the stretch plan as challenging.

The Compensation Committee approved awards of a total of 741,020 RSUs under the revised 2010 Incentive Plan to members of our management. The following table sets forth the maximum number of RSUs that could have vested for each named executive officer, approximately 57% of which was dependent upon attaining the revenue and non-GAAP operating profit targets described above and approximately 43% of which was dependent upon the executive remaining with us in August 2011. Under our Executive Employment Plans, our non-GAAP operating profit is determined on the same basis that we report non-GAAP operating profit publicly.

Participant Bob L. Corey	Title Acting President and Chief Executive Officer during Fiscal 2010 Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer	Number of RSUs 157,500
Michael L. Seaton	Vice President of Worldwide Sales and Services	74,200
Paul A. Hooper	Chief Marketing Officer	78,400
Suresh Gopalakrishnan	Vice President, Engineering	79,800

We attained the goals of the base plan, and each of these executives remained with us through the August 15, 2010 date for vesting of the retention award. As a result, Mr. Corey vested in 112,500 shares, Mr. Seaton vested in 53,000 shares, Mr. Hooper vested in 56,000 shares, and Mr. Gopalakrishnan vested in 57,000 shares.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation

2005 Equity Incentive Plan

Under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, or the 2005 Plan, we may grant stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, RSUs, performance shares, performance units, and other share-based or cash-based awards to employees and consultants. The 2005 Plan also authorizes the grant of awards of stock options, stock appreciation rights, or SARs, restricted stock, and RSUs to non-employee members of our Board and deferred compensation awards to officers, directors and certain management or highly compensated employees. Under the 2005 Plan, all stock options must be granted with an exercise price per share that is not less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the effective date of grant of the option. The 2005 Plan replaced the 1996 Stock Option Plan, the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, and the 2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan. Pursuant to the 2005 Plan, up to 27,000,000 shares of our common stock are authorized for issuance. As of June 27, 2010, 13,412,704 shares were available for future grant under the 2005 Plan.

New Hire Grants; Promotional Grants

Generally, we grant equity awards to our new employees, including our named executive officers, in connection with the start of their employment, and we occasionally grant equity awards in connection with the

promotion of employees. New-hire stock options granted to named executive officers generally vest as follows: one-fourth vests one year after the officer s employment start date, and the remaining shares vest monthly over the following three years at a rate of 1/48th of the entire option each month, subject to the officer s continued employment with us. Promotional stock options granted to named executive officers generally vest monthly over the four years following the date of grant at a rate of 1/48th of the entire option each month, subject to the officer s continued employment with us. However, our Board or the Compensation Committee has approved certain exceptions to vesting schedules for new-hire and promotional equity awards in the past. For example, see *Change in Control and Severance Agreements*, below. The aggregate amounts of the new-hire or promotional grants to named executive officer are negotiated with the named executive officer.

During the fiscal year ended June 27, 2010, we granted Bob L. Corey options to acquire 450,000 shares of our common stock in connection with his election as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and an additional 100,000 shares in connection with his assumption of the role of Acting President and Chief Executive Officer, which vest after 18 months of continued service to us. These option grants were made in October 2009 and January 2010, respectively.

Annual Merit Grants

We have typically granted each named executive officer an additional stock option grant on an annual basis, with the goal of providing continued incentives to retain strong executives and improve corporate performance. Merit based annual stock options granted to named executive officers generally vest monthly over the four years following the date of grant at a rate of 1/48th of the entire option each month, subject to the officer s continued employment with us. However, our Board or the Compensation Committee has approved certain exceptions to vesting schedules in the past.

In November 2009, the Compensation Committee evaluated the performance of each of our named executive officers and, due to the economic situation at the time, decided not to grant any merit based annual stock options.

Award Granting Procedures; Policy on Timing of Equity Grants

Our process with regard to grants of equity compensation awards to Board members, officers, and non-officer employees is as follows:

The general practice for equity awards is to make grants once per quarter, during open trading windows only, on the second trading day following the public announcement of quarterly financial results, pursuant to a list to be circulated to the appropriate granting authority prior to the proposed approval date.

All grants are to be approved by the Compensation Committee.

Grants are to be approved at Compensation Committee meetings (not by unanimous written consent, except in extraordinary circumstances).

Granting authority may not be delegated to management.

Our Board and management are to continue monitoring processes and policies recommended by the SEC, self-regulatory authorities and outside advisors.

All Board and Compensation Committee minutes are to be circulated to the directors as soon as reasonably practicable (generally, within two weeks of meeting). Counsel should attend all Board and Compensation Committee meetings.

Our Board has directed management to propose a mechanism for monitoring compliance with and reporting to our Board on our policies and procedures relating to options grants.

These processes were adopted by our Board in April 2007, and are designed to ensure that we continue to employ best practices and procedures with respect to equity compensation awards.

In addition, we monitor the number of shares that we are utilizing for all of our equity compensation programs, including new hire grants, promotional grants and annual merit grants, in order to prudently manage stock option expense and potential dilution of stockholder ownership. The Compensation Committee in consultation with Radford approved a target gross equity pool that could be used for all grants issued to new hires, promotion grants and merit grants, and to reflect industry practices for managing the overall stock option burn rate. In compliance with industry best practices and guidance from Risk Metrics Institutional Stockholder Services (ISS), the Compensation Committee examines the trends for burn rate levels and equity vehicles to manage the plan within the standards and norms established by ISS. Our dilution rate is measured as a gross number of equity awards in a given year, expressed as a percentage of the outstanding common stock at the end of each fiscal year.

Change in Control and Severance Agreements

Each of our named executive officers are employed at-will. However, from time to time, we implement plans or enter into agreements that would provide benefits payable to certain employees, including named executive officers, in connection with the termination of employment, a change in our control or other situations. Without these benefits, officers may be tempted to leave us prior to the closing of the change in control, especially if they do not wish to remain with the entity after the transaction closes, and any departures could jeopardize the consummation of the transaction or our interests if the transaction does not close. The Compensation Committee believes that these benefits therefore serve to enhance stockholder value in the transaction, and align the officers interest with those of our stockholders in change in control transactions.

Our agreements with named executive officers are described under *Summary of Employment and Other Agreements* below. The potential payments that each of named executive officer would have received if a change in control or termination of employment had occurred on June 27, 2010 are set forth under *Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control* below.

Other Benefits

We provide other customary benefits that are comprehensive and apply uniformly to all of our employees, including our named executive officers. Our employee benefits program includes medical, dental, prescription drug, Medical and Dependent Care Flexible Spending contribution, vision care, disability insurance, life insurance benefits, business travel insurance, 401(k) savings plan with employer match (which was suspended effective April 1, 2009, due to business conditions), educational assistance, employee assistance program and holidays. We do not include a fixed vacation allowance for named executive officers, as they typically travel extensively and are required to be available to us even while vacationing. We do not provide a defined benefit retirement pension plan, supplemental life insurance or the use of company vehicles to our named executive officers.

In January 1999, our Board adopted our 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or the Purchase Plan. In December 2005, our stockholders approved an amendment to the Purchase Plan to increase the maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the plan by 5,000,000 to a total of 12,000,000 shares. The Purchase Plan permits eligible employees, including our named executive officers, to acquire shares of our common stock through periodic payroll deductions of up to 15% of total compensation. No more than 1,000 shares may be purchased on any purchase date per employee, and each offering period has a maximum duration of 3 months. The price at which the common stock may be purchased is 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of our common stock on the first day of the applicable offering period or on the last day of the respective purchase period. Through October 25, 2010, and other than Paul A. Hooper, our named executive officers have not participated in the Purchase Plan.

Tax Considerations

The Compensation Committee has considered the provisions of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the Code, and related Treasury Department regulations, which restrict deductibility of executive compensation paid to our named executive officers holding office at the end of any year to the extent this compensation exceeds \$1,000,000 for any of these officers in any year and does not qualify for an exception under the statute or regulations. Income from options granted under our stockholder-approved stock option plan would generally qualify for an exemption from these restrictions so long as the options are granted by a committee whose members are outside directors (as defined by Section 162(m)) and have an exercise price no less than the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant. We expect that the Compensation Committee will continue to be comprised solely of outside directors, and that any options granted to our executive officers will be approved by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee does not believe that in general other components of our compensation are likely to exceed \$1,000,000 for any executive officer in the foreseeable future, and therefore concluded that no further action with respect to qualifying this compensation for deductibility was necessary at this time. In the future, the Compensation Committee expects to continue evaluating the advisability of qualifying its executive compensation for deductibility. The Compensation Committee spolicy is to qualify its executive compensation for deductibility under applicable tax laws as practicable.

Compensation Risk Evaluation

The Compensation Committee requested that management review and report to the Compensation Committee regarding elements of our compensation system that could affect risk and in particular had any potential to result in material risk to us and the report was made and evaluated by the Compensation Committee in August 2010. Included in the analysis were such factors as the behaviors being induced by our fixed and variable pay components, the balance of short-term and long-term performance goals in our incentive compensation system, the established limits on permissible incentive award levels, internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance policies and practices.

Stock Ownership and Hedging

At present, the Compensation Committee has not established any equity or security ownership requirements for its executive officers which is a policy that is reviewed annually as part of the regular review of our pay plans. We prohibit executive officers from hedging the economic risk of ownership of our stock.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information for fiscal year 2010 concerning the compensation of our named executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$) ⁽¹⁾	Stock Awards (\$) ⁽²⁾	Option Awards (\$) ⁽²⁾	Non-Equity Incentive Plan CompensationCo (\$) ⁽¹⁾	All Other ompensation (\$) ⁽³⁾	Total (\$)
Bob L. Corey	I cai	(\$)	(¢)	(\$)``	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(Φ)
Acting President and Chief Executive Officer during Fiscal 2010 and Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer Suresh K. Gopalakrishnan	2010 2008 2009	422,839 267,125 279,469	0 44,877 0	308,250 0 0	494,185 261,096 0	0 0 0	742 135 ⁽⁵⁾ 270 ⁽⁵⁾	1,226,016 573,233 279,739
Vice President, Engineering	2010	285,000	0	156,180	0	0	470 ⁽⁵⁾	441,650
Paul A. Hooper								
Chief Marketing Officer	2008	268,000	46,096	0	302,634	0	135 ⁽⁵⁾	